
1 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 

6:30 P.M. – EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance. 

REGULAR MEETING February 26, 2018 

1. ROLL CALL

2. INVOCATION – Pastor Jason Allison, Terra Nova

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council
held on February 12, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the City Council Retreat meeting
held on February 10, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the joint meeting of Council and
the Delaware County Commissioners held on February 15, 2018, as
recorded and transcribed.

5. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Parking and Safety 

meeting held on November 20, 2017.  
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Parks and Recreation

Advisory Board Meeting held on January 16, 2018. 
C. Resolution No. 18-11, a resolution appointing members to various

Boards, Commissions, and/or Committees, and specifying the 
term of the appointment.  

D. Resolution No. 18-12, a resolution appointing a representative and 
an alternate representative to the Ohio Public Works Committee 
(OPWC) District 17 Integrating Committee for the period of April 
2018 through April 2021.  

E. Establish March 12, 2018 at 7:20 p.m. as a date and time for a 



2 
 

public hearing and second reading for Ordinance No. 18-18, an 
ordinance amending Section 933.09 of the Codified Ordinances of 
the City of Delaware, Ohio regarding intoxicating beverages 
prohibited, and repealing existing Section 933.09 in its entirety, 
and declaring an emergency. 

  
6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
8. SECOND READING of Resolution No. 18-10, a resolution authorizing the 

City Manager to enter into a three-year contract agreement (plus two 
optional one-year extensions) with the YMCA of Central Ohio to continue 
to provide Recreation Management Services.  

 
9. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-08, an ordinance adopting 

Sections 718.80 through 718.95 of the Ohio Revised Code. (HB49 2018 
Tax Returns) 

 
10.  7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

18-11, an ordinance for Del-Mor Dwellings Corporation approving a 
Rezoning Amendment to allow a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay 
District) at 250 Curtis Street on the north side of Firestone Drive on 
approximately 3.64 acres on property zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional District) for an actively owned and managed 40 
dwelling unit low and moderate income affordable housing development. 

 
11. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

18-12, an ordinance for Del-Mor Dwellings Corporation approving a 
Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) to be established at 250 Curtis Street on the north 
side of Firestone Drive on approximately 3.64 acres on property zoned 
PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional District) for an actively owned and 
managed 40 dwelling unit low and moderate income affordable housing 
development. 

 
12. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-13, an ordinance for Del-Mor 

Dwellings Corporation approving a Preliminary Development Plan for an 
actively owned and managed 40 dwelling unit low and moderate income 
affordable housing development at 250 Curtis Street on the north side of 
Firestone Drive on approximately 3.64 acres on property zoned PO/I 
PMU (Planned Office/Institutional District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District). 

 



3 
 

13. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 
18-14, an ordinance for Del-Mor Dwellings Corporation approving a 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment on the Future Land Use Map from 
Medium Density Single Family to Mixed Use at 250 Curtis Street on the 
north side of Firestone Drive on approximately 3.64 acres on property 
zoned PO/I PMU (Planned Office/Institutional District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) for an actively owned and managed 40 
dwelling unit low and moderate income affordable housing development. 

 
14. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 18-13, a resolution in support of a 

Sister City visit to Baumholder, Germany.  
 
15. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 18-14, a resolution authorizing the 

advancement of cash from the General Fund to the Capital Improvement 
Fund.  

 
16. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-18, an ordinance amending 

Section 933.09 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Delaware, Ohio 
regarding intoxicating beverages prohibited, and repealing existing 
Section 933.09 in its entirety, and declaring an emergency.  

 
17. FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
18. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
19. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
20. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 









































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM C DATE: 02/26/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-11 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  --- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO VARIOUS BOARDS, 
COMMISSIONS, AND/OR COMMITTEES, AND SPECIFYING THE TERM OF THE 
APPOINTMENTS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Carolyn Kay Riggle, Mayor 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Resume 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-11 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO VARIOUS 
BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND/OR COMMITTEES, AND 
SPECIFYING THE TERM OF THE APPOINTMENTS. 

 
WHEREAS, Members are to be appointed to serve on various Committees, 

Commissions and Boards by the Mayor of the City of Delaware and confirmed by 
Council; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor has appointed and Council has confirmed the 
following appointments. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The following appointments are hereby made: 
 
1. Airport Commission – Timothy Smith-New Appointment (filling 

unexpired City term expiring June 30, 2021) 
2. Sister City Advisory Board – Darrell Albon- New Appointment, Ohio 

Wesleyan University Representative (term expiring June 30, 2021) 
 

SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
PASSED:                                    , 2018  YEAS        NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM D DATE: 02/26/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-12 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A REPRESENTATIVE AND AN ALTERNATE 
REPRESENTATIVE TO THE OHIO PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE (OPWC) 
DISTRICT 17 INTEGRATING COMMITTEE FOR THE PERIOD OF APRIL 2018 
THROUGH APRIL 2021. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Delaware and the City of Powell share a seat on the Integrating 
Committee for OPWC District 17.  The seat is reserved for “Cities of Delaware 
County”.  The City of Powell has again deferred to the City of Delaware to 
appoint a representative to fill this one seat, as well as an alternate. This 
deferment is documented in an email exchange between City Managers of both 
cities.   The proposed representative is Matt Weber from Public Works and the 
alternative is Director of Public Works/City Engineer Bill Ferrigno. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
OPWC requires this appointment be made through City Council action.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
OPWC has awarded an average of $450,000 to the City of Delaware over the 
most recent 3-year term of current representatives. 



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E. – Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
City of Powell deferment email 



 RESOLUTION NO. 18-12 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A REPRESENTATIVE AND 
AN ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE TO THE OHIO 
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE (OPWC) DISTRICT 17 
INTEGRATING COMMITTEE FOR THE PERIOD OF 
APRIL 2018 THROUGH APRIL 2021. 

 
WHEREAS, Members are to be appointed to serve on various Committees, 

Commissions and Boards by the Mayor of the City of Delaware and confirmed by 
Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor has appointed and Council has confirmed the 
following appointments. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The following appointments are hereby made: 
 

Matt Weber will serve as the City’s representative to the Ohio Public 
Works Committee District 17 Integrating Committee and Bill Ferrigno 
will serve as an alternate.  The term of this appointment is for a 
period of three from April 2018 through April 2021. 

 
SECTION 2. This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage. 

 
 
PASSED:                                    , 2018  YEAS        NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



From: Kim Gepper
To: Elaine McCloskey
Subject: FW: Appoint OPWC
Date: Tuesday, February 20, 2018 1:04:00 PM

 
 
From: Matt Weber 
Sent: Monday, February 5, 2018 11:05 AM
To: R Thomas Homan <rthoman@delawareohio.net>; Kim Gepper <kgepper@delawareohio.net>
Cc: Bill Ferrigno <bferrigno@delawareohio.net>
Subject: RE: Appoint OPWC
 
Thank you so much for making this priority.  Whom would you like to draft the Resolution?
 
Matthew B. Weber, P.E.
Deputy City Engineer
City of Delaware, Ohio
Public Works Department - Division of Traffic & Engineering Services
440 East William Street
Ph:  740-203-1721
 

From: Kim Gepper On Behalf Of R Thomas Homan
Sent: Friday, February 02, 2018 3:56 PM
To: Matt Weber; Bill Ferrigno
Subject: FW: Appoint OPWC
 
Please see below.
 
From: Steve Lutz [mailto:SLutz@cityofpowell.us] 
Sent: Friday, February 2, 2018 2:56 PM
To: R Thomas Homan <rthoman@delawareohio.net>
Cc: Chris Huber <CHuber@cityofpowell.us>
Subject: RE: Appoint OPWC
 

***ATTENTION: This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or
click on links from unknown senders or unexpected emails.***

 
Tom,
 
Boy, does time fly.
 
First, as always thanks for running this past me.  The City of Powell supports Matt’s OPWC
appointment.  Our City Engineer Chris Huber will most likely reach out to Matt to make sure he is
aware of Powell’s interests.  We feel confident that Matt will be a strong advocate for the City of
Powell if we need a voice of support for a proposed project.

mailto:/O=CITY OF DELAWARE/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=KIM GEPPER085
mailto:EMcCloskey@delawareohio.net
mailto:SLutz@cityofpowell.us
mailto:rthoman@delawareohio.net
mailto:CHuber@cityofpowell.us


 
Thanks again for the notice Tom.
 
Steve Lutz
City Manager
 
City of Powell
47 Hall St.
Powell, OH. 43065
(614) 396-3366
(614) 885-5339 (fax)
slutz@cityofpowell.us
 

From: Kim Gepper [mailto:kgepper@delawareohio.net] On Behalf Of R Thomas Homan
Sent: Friday, February 02, 2018 1:52 PM
To: Steve Lutz <SLutz@cityofpowell.us>
Cc: R Thomas Homan <rthoman@delawareohio.net>; Matt Weber <mweber@delawareohio.net>;
Bill Ferrigno <bferrigno@delawareohio.net>
Subject: Appoint OPWC
 
Hi Steve:
 
It’s time for the renewal of the City’s OPWC appointment, which requires concurrence
from the City of Powell.  Attached is the paperwork from 2015, the last time the
appointment was confirmed.  I have also attached a copy of the proposed resolution for
the next three year period.  You’ll note that we are proposing that Deputy City Engineer
Matt Weber be the City’s primary representative with Bill Ferrigno being the alternate. 
 
Thank you for your consideration and feel free to reach out if you have any questions or
need additional information. 
 
 
R. Thomas Homan, ICMA-CM
City Manager
City of Delaware
1 South Sandusky Street
Delaware, OH 43015
740 203 1010 - office
740 203 1024 - fax
email: rthoman@delawareohio.net
 
 

This message may contain confidential and/or proprietary information and is intended for the person/entity to whom it was originally
addressed. Any use by others is strictly prohibited.

 

mailto:slutz@cityofpowell.us
mailto:kgepper@delawareohio.net
mailto:SLutz@cityofpowell.us
mailto:rthoman@delawareohio.net
mailto:mweber@delawareohio.net
mailto:bferrigno@delawareohio.net
mailto:rthoman@delawareohio.net


  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  8    DATE: 02/26/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-10 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:   
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A THREE-
YEAR CONTRACT AGREEMENT (PLUS TWO OPTIONAL ONE-YEAR 
EXTENSIONS) WITH THE YMCA OF CENTRAL OHIO TO CONTINUE TO 
PROVIDE RECREATION MANAGEMENT SERVICES.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
An agreement between the City and the YMCA for the YMCA to continue 
operating City Recreation Programs. The initial agreement was a 1 year term 
progressing to a 3 year term and now proposes a 3 year term with a potential 
two one-year extension. The proposed revisions to the agreement have been 
instituted through past experience and will continue to evolve. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The agreement will allow for the continuation of the recreation programming 
partnership with the City of Delaware and the YMCA. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Reviewed by Parks Advisory Board January 16, 2018, no comments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Annual reduction in recreation programming payment to the YMCA by $15,200. 
This reduction will come from a reallocation of $9,000 which the City paid to the 



YMCA for facility (Mingo Recreation Center) improvements and now will be 
included in the Parks & Natural Resources facility improvement fund. The 
remaining $6,200 reduction is the fee charged by the YMCA to handle shelter 
reservations. The City will take over this task with the assistance of online 
programming software and Public Works & Parks Administrative Assistance 
staff. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
Shelter rental coordination will be solely the responsibility of city staff. In the 
past, the YMCA staff handled shelter rental scheduling and city staff handled 
shelter preparation. The delay in communication often created notification 
conflicts and increased staff time in coordinating. The intent of the policy change 
is to increase staff efficiency and reduce budget costs. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Proposed Agreement 
Rec Levy Memorandum 1.3.18 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-10 
  

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO A THREE-YEAR CONTRACT 
AGREEMENT (PLUS TWO OPTIONAL ONE-YEAR 
EXTENSIONS) WITH THE YMCA OF CENTRAL OHIO 
TO CONTINUE TO PROVIDE RECREATION 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES.  

  
WHEREAS, in Ordinance No. 14-108 City Council authorized the city 

manager to enter into a three-year recreation management agreement with the 
YMCA of Central Ohio under which the YMCA manages the City’s recreation 
department, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and the YMCA desire to extend the recreation 

management agreement for a three year period with two potential one-year 
extensions, subject to funding by the legislative authority while adopting 
changes to that agreement.  

  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
  

SECTION 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and 
enter into an agreement, attached hereto, to amend and extend the recreation 
management agreement with the YMCA. 

 
SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after this passage.  
  

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
TO:  R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
CC:  Jackie Walker, Asst. City Manager 
FROM:   Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resources Director 
DATE:    2.8.18 
RE:  Recreation Management Agreement with YMCA 
 

Over the last several months, Jackie and I have been working with Matt Bruns & Jeremy 
Byers of the YMCA to update the Recreation Management Agreement. On September 14, we 
reviewed the agreement and updates with Council Member Lisa Keller, Council Member 
George Hellinger, Matt Bruns and Jeremy Byers. The following represents a summary of the 
major changes to the agreement: 

1. (Section 1a)-The prior agreement had the YMCA being responsible for all rental 
coordination including shelters rentals. City Staff will now handle shelter rentals. 
The change was necessitated for the following reasons:  
A.) Rental Coordination -The YMCA Staff would schedule reservations and City 
staff would prepare the shelters. There was often a lag in communication that would 
create additional work verifying rentals. The solution is to minimize a step and 
allow staff to be the direct contact for rentals. 
B.) Online rentals -The YMCA did not have the software capable of allowing for the 
public to rent shelters through an on-line application. The City will contract a 
consultant to provide this automated convenience and maintain personal service.  
C.) Financial obstacles –The YMCA has requested that they do not receive rental 
payments as this creates additional steps and is difficult for their accounting 
department. The change will eliminate the YMCA receiving payments as they will 
come directly to the City. 
The proposed solution will provide the public additional options for renting shelters 
and we anticipate that it will only add minimal staff hours. It will save the City 
$6,200.00 annually (does not include $600 software costs) in compensation 
previously paid to the YMCA. The YMCA staff will still be responsible for renting 
indoor spaces. 
 

2. (Section 2b & 5a)-Mingo maintenance costs were shared by both parties with the 
YMCA obligated to spend up to $9,000 per year. The proposed agreement reduces 
the $9,000 compensation the City paid the YMCA as part of the annual payment and 
transfers this to the Parks building maintenance fund. The City will be responsible 



   
 

 

for all non-routine maintenance costs. This amendment will allow for more timely 
and efficient building maintenance. 
 

3. (Section 2j)-Defines when the customer satisfaction survey will be done. The 
amendment defines a specific time frame of twice per year. 
 

4. (Section 2k)- New Section. In 2018, the YMCA will begin to track Mingo pool usage, 
differentiating users by day pass, YMCA representatives, Mingo members and 
special use (group entries). 
 

5. (Section 3b)- The Advisory Committee has been revised to three Parks Board 
Members, three YMCA members and two City Council Members. 
 

6. (Section 5c)-New Section. An Accreditation Report will be prepared by City and 
YMCA staff that points out Mingo Recreation Center building maintenance 
deficiencies and promotes an action plan on who and when the items will be 
addressed. This will allow us to be more proactive in addressing maintenance issues 
and creates a tracking system to insure items are completed. The initial report will 
be completed in 2018. 
 

7. (Section 6b)- The 2017 management fee was $209,153 and the 2018 management 
fee will be $198,802.00. Subsequent years will reflect a 2.5% increase subject to 
annual funding by legislative authority. The change shows a reduction of $9,000.00 
for building maintenance costs and $6,200.00 for shelter administration costs plus 
the 2.5% annual rate increase. 
 

8. (Section 7a)-The proposed agreement remains a three year agreement but allows 
for two, one year extensions.  
 

9. Exhibit A and B have been updated to reflection program changes and price changes. 
Please see attached Exhibits outlining updates. In 2017, our shelter rental were 
reorganized from an all-day rental to a two block rental. This change was made to 
improve availability to the public while keeping prices stable. The change increased 
rentals and kept costs in line with previous years. 

 

Please let me know if you have any question or if I can provide any further information. 
Thank you. 

 



   

1 
 

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

This Management Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered into 
on the __________ day of _____________________, 2018, by and between the CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO, an Ohio political subdivision (hereinafter the "City"), and 
THE YOUNG MEN'S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION OF CENTRAL OHIO (hereinafter 
"YMCA" ), an Ohio nonprofit corporation.  

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, the City is currently operating a Parks and Recreation 

Department which is comprised of a separate “Parks” division (“Parks Division”) 
and a separate “Recreation” division (“Recreation Division”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the City believes that it will be in the best interest of the City 
and its residents to have YMCA provide certain management services with 
respect to the Recreation Division of the Delaware Parks and Recreation 
Department, as more specifically set forth herein, inasmuch as YMCA has a 
demonstrated capability in (a) the provision of professional management of 
recreation programs and facilities and (b) the operation of quality recreational 
programming; and  

 
WHEREAS, YMCA has and will benefit from the provision of such 

management services to the City inasmuch as the provision to the City and the 
surrounding community is complimentary to the organizational mission and 
objectives of the YMCA; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage YMCA to provide management 
services to the Recreation Division, and YMCA desires to accept such 
engagement, on the terms and subject to the provisions hereinafter set forth.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, receipt of which 
is hereby acknowledged, the City and YMCA do hereby agree as follows:  
 
1. ENGAGEMENT OF YMCA  

 
(a) Engagement to Perform Management Services. Upon the terms 

hereinafter set forth, the City hereby engages YMCA to perform the Management 
Services (as hereinafter defined), and YMCA hereby accepts such engagement 
and agrees to perform such Management Services with diligence. For purposes 
hereof, the term Management Services shall mean (i) the provision of 
administrative services with respect to the operation of the Recreation Division, 
including but not limited to, management of the Recreation Division, hiring and 
supervising staff and employees, scheduling and coordinating recreation 
programming and facility leasing, (ii) the operation of the Mingo Park Recreation 
Center and Administrative Offices and the Jack Florance Aquatic Center, 500 



   

2 
 

East Lincoln Avenue, Delaware, Ohio (the “Recreation Facilities”), including, but 
not limited to, provision of janitorial services and Minor Repairs (as hereinafter 
defined) at the Recreation Facilities, (iii) the operation of recreation programming 
at the Recreation Facilities and at other City-owned facilities, including but not 
limited to, soccer fields, ball fields, basketball courts and tennis courts 
maintained by the Parks Division at the Mingo Park Complex (such other 
facilities being sometimes herein referred to as the “Parks Facilities”) and (iv)  In 
addition, the YMCA will take over the City’s role in Harmony in the Park, Safety 
City, the Halloween Party, Easter Egg Hunt, and Adult and Youth Triathlons, as 
described below.  
 

(b) Implementation/Operation Plan.  Sixty days prior to commencement of 
this agreement, the YMCA will provide the City with a plan describing the 
implementation and operation of this agreement. 

 
(c)  Exclusions. Expressly excluded from the definition of Management 

Services shall be (i) the operation of the Parks Division and the maintenance of 
the Parks Facilities, (ii) the operation of any City-owned golf courses and (iii) the 
conduct of Major Repairs (as hereinafter defined), (iv) DYAA Youth Soccer, (v) 
Optimist Tackle Football and Cheerleading, The City agrees that it shall timely 
and diligently perform the foregoing excluded services throughout the term of 
this Agreement, so as to maximize the ability of YMCA to perform the 
Management Services.  
 

(d) Location/employees. It is anticipated that YMCA shall conduct its 
administrative responsibilities largely from the Delaware Community 
Center/YMCA located on South Houk Road, Delaware, Ohio and shall staff in 
part its administrative and programming responsibilities with employees of the 
Delaware Community Center/YMCA. The YMCA will officially notify the City of 
personnel contact changes on a regular basis. 
 
2. PERFORMANCE OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES BY YMCA  

 
(a) Programs. YMCA shall be responsible for the day-to-day management 

and operation of the Recreation Division, including but not limited to, the 
implementation and operation of those programs which the YMCA determines, 
in the exercise of its commercially reasonable judgment, to be financially and 
physically feasible to be conducted at the Recreation Facilities and/or the Parks 
Facilities. All revenues generated by such programming shall be the property of 
YMCA and any and all costs associated with the programs conducted by YMCA 
pursuant to the provisions hereof shall be the responsibility of YMCA, excluding, 
however, the cost of utilities consumed in connection therewith, which costs the 
City hereby agrees to bear. In connection with the conduct of such programs, 
YMCA shall be entitled to the sole and exclusive use of the Recreation Facilities 
during scheduled programs and to the non-exclusive use in common with the 
general public of the Parks Facilities, on an as-scheduled basis.  



   

3 
 

 
 (b) Maintenance of Recreation Facilities. Subject to the provisions of 

Paragraph 5(b) hereof,  Daily routine maintenance of the Mingo Facility including 
JFlo such as cleaning of the facility, lighting, water testing and treating, touch 
up painting, supplies, minor repairs and adjustments, ceiling tiles, etc… 
(Chemicals for the pool are the responsibility of the YMCA).  The Accreditation 
Report will be completed prior to the end of 2017.  A quarterly inspection will be 
completed between City and YMCA staff using the reports. .  The City will be 
responsible for all issues outside of those listed above as well as the preventative 
maintenance. 
 

(c) Alterations or Improvements to the Recreation Facilities. YMCA shall 
have the right to make minor alterations or improvements to the Recreation 
Facilities, provided YMCA shall make the same in accordance with all applicable 
laws and in a good and workmanlike manner. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
however, YMCA shall not make alterations or improvements to the Recreation 
Facilities which are structural in nature without first obtaining the approval from 
the Advisory Committee and the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld, conditioned or delayed.  
 

(d) Staffing. YMCA shall hire the staff necessary and appropriate to perform 
the Management Services, as the YMCA shall determine in the exercise of its 
commercially reasonable judgment. All salaries, benefits and compensation of 
the staff shall be the responsibility of, and shall be paid by, YMCA. None of such 
items shall be paid or reimbursed by the City. As set forth in Paragraph 1(c), it 
is anticipated that some or all of the employees engaged to perform the 
Management Services may be employees shared with the Delaware Community 
Center /YMCA operations.  
 

(e) Additional Program Funding. YMCA shall (i) seek program funding with 
the United Way of Delaware to maximize usage of the Recreation Facilities and 
programming at the Recreation Facilities and the Park Facilities, (ii) coordinate 
long-range goals for the operation of the Recreation Division, (iii) seek partners 
for the development of programs to be held at the Recreation Facilities and the 
Park Facilities and (iv) generate ideas and programs for revenue and continued 
operation of the Recreation Division. Program funding obtained from the United 
Way of Delaware or from other grants shall be the property of YMCA for use in 
accordance with grant criteria.  
 

(f) At a minimum, the YMCA will provide the programming referenced in 
Exhibit A. The YMCA may offer additional programming at its discretion.  

 
(g) Facilities will be made available for rental by residents at rates listed in 

Exhibit B. Facilities will be rented on a first-paid, first-served basis. Current user 
Angel Dunlap Dancing will continue to be permitted to rent facilities.  The City 
recognizes that the YMCA may require any group renting facilities managed by 



   

4 
 

the YMCA to purchase liability insurance naming the City and the YMCA as 
additional insured parties. For special events, the YMCA shall require any group 
renting facilities managed by the YMCA to purchase liability insurance naming 
the City and the YMCA as additional insured parties. 

 
(h) The YMCA is responsible for purchasing inventory and equipment 

necessary for programming offered, including but not limited to balls, concession 
equipment, and capital equipment such as ball field drags for ball fields. At the 
start of the agreement, the city will sell existing inventory and equipment to the 
YMCA at cost following the requirements of Delaware Codified Ordinance Section 
108.02.  
 

(i) At the end of each fiscal year, the YMCA and the City will meet to discuss 
the program report required under Section 4(d) and discuss any proposed 
changes to the programs and rates. Changes will be memorialized in an 
amendment to this agreement.   

 
 (j) On a biannual basis the City and the YMCA will conduct a customer 
satisfaction survey on recreation users to determine satisfaction levels and 
report the findings to the advisory committee and the Parks Advisory Board. 
 
 (k) The YMCA is responsible for tracking Mingo Pool visitors and will 
categorize per the following: 1) YMCA members, 2) Mingo Pool members, 3) Day 
passes, 4) Group entries. This will allow City and YMCA staff to accurately track 
visitors.  
 
3. MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY OF YMCA/ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
 

(a) YMCA shall have all necessary powers of management, with full 
authority to do all acts not restricted or prohibited herein or by law that are 
necessary or desirable for the proper performance of the Management Services. 
Using current and past Recreation Division programming as a model, YMCA 
shall have the freedom and discretion to perform the Management Services, 
including but not limited to, the discretion and authority to make all decisions 
pertaining to personnel, building usage, program design, hours of operation and 
building/program rules and regulations.  
 

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, it is understood and agreed 
that the parties shall establish an "Advisory Committee" to make 
recommendations to YMCA regarding community needs. The representatives of 
the Advisory Committee shall include three current members of the Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board, an additional two members of City Council, and three 
representatives appointed by YMCA. In addition, the Parks and Natural Resource 
Director and City Manager or their designee shall serve as ex-officio members of 
the “Advisory Committee”. YMCA shall establish by-laws, which will be approved 
by the Committee, pursuant to which the Advisory Committee shall operate. The 



   

5 
 

sole function of the Advisory Committee shall be to advise YMCA and the City on 
community interests as they relate to the operation of the Recreation Division 
and the performance of the Management Services. YMCA shall take into 
consideration such advice and recommendations.  
 

(c) The City Manager will designate a staff member to serve as a point of 
contact for the YMCA management agreement and will manage the contract on 
behalf of the city.  
 
4. ADDITIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF YMCA  

 
(a) Compliance with Law. YMCA hereby agrees that, in the performance of 

its duties hereunder, YMCA shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, 
orders, rules, regulations, and requirements of all federal, state and local 
government authorities, courts, commissions, bodies, boards and officers.  

 
(b) Non-discrimination. In the hiring of employees for the performance of 

the services contemplated under this Agreement, YMCA and all persons acting 
on behalf of YMCA, shall not, by reason of race, creed, religion, sex, handicap, 
or color, discriminate against any citizen of this State in the employment of labor 
or workers who are qualified and available to perform the work to which the 
employment relates. Further, neither YMCA nor any person acting on YMCA's 
behalf, shall discriminate against or intimidate any employee hired for the 
performance of the services contemplated hereunder on account of race, creed, 
religion, sex, handicap, or color.  

 
(c) YMCA's Employees. All personnel employed by YMCA to provide the 

Management Services shall at all times and for all purposes be solely the 
employees of YMCA, under the direction and supervision of YMCA. YMCA shall 
assure that all such personnel have the legal ability to work in the United States. 
It is understood and agreed that YMCA and its personnel are acting as an 
independent contractor to the City in the provision of the Management Services 
hereunder. Neither YMCA nor any of its personnel shall in any event be entitled 
to participate in, or to receive any benefits from, any of the City's employee 
benefit or welfare plans.  

 
Further, YMCA shall withhold and/or pay all federal and state income 

taxes, social security taxes, federal and state unemployment insurance and 
similar taxes and all other assessments, taxes, contribution or sums payable 
with respect to YMCA or any of its personnel as a result of or in connection with 
the Management Services provided hereunder, and YMCA shall file (and shall 
direct all of its personnel to file) all returns and reports with respect to any of the 
foregoing. The provisions of this Paragraph 4(c) shall survive the expiration or 
earlier termination of this Agreement.  

 



   

6 
 

(d) Program Reports. On October 1st of each year of this Agreement, YMCA 
shall prepare and submit a report on the programs operated by YMCA over the 
past year (hereinafter a "Program Report"). Each Program Report shall set forth 
the following information relative to the particular fiscal year of YMCA: (i) the 
number of persons utilizing each Recreation Facility and program provided 
pursuant hereto, (ii) a summary of the programs and events conducted by YMCA 
pursuant to the provisions hereof, (iii) a summary of the expenditures and 
revenues associated with each Recreational Facility and program, (iv) an analysis 
of the quality of the programs and events conducted by YMCA pursuant to the 
provisions hereof and (v) a summary of programs that YMCA proposes to conduct 
for the Recreation Division during the following fiscal year and the proposed 
rates.  

 
(e) Safety and Protection. In the performance of the Management Services, 

YMCA shall (i) comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local 
safety laws and building codes in an effort to prevent accidents or injury to 
employees and to persons participating in the programs of the Recreation 
Division, (ii) take all legally required precautions for the safety of employees and 
all persons participating in the programs of the Recreation Division and (iii) 
emphasize regularly to its employees the need for continual attention to accident-
prevention efforts and strategies.  
 
5. MAINTENANCE OF RECREATION FACILITIES  

 
(a)  Daily routine maintenance of the Mingo Facility including JFlo such 

as cleaning of the facility, lighting, water testing and treating, touch up painting, 
supplies, minor repairs and adjustments, ceiling tiles, etc… (Chemicals for the 
pool are the responsibility of the YMCA). The Accreditation Report will be 
completed prior to the end of 2018.  A quarterly inspection will be completed 
between City and YMCA staff using the reports. 

 
(b) The City will be responsible for all issues outside of those listed 5(a) as 

well as the preventative maintenance. 
 
(c) Prior to the start of the 2018 contract, the parties will negotiate the 

Accreditation Report (Exhibit C- which will be added at the end of 2018) to this 
agreement, which will detail the responsibilities of the City and the YMCA 
regarding maintenance. 

 
6. REVENUES AND COMPENSATION 

(a) As compensation for the Management Services provided by YMCA 
under this Agreement, and in consideration for YMCA entering into this 
Agreement, the City acknowledges and agrees that YMCA is hereby entitled to 
collect and retain all revenues generated from programs conducted by YMCA 
pursuant to this Agreement. The YMCA is permitted to retain rental revenues 



   

7 
 

from the the Jack Florance Pool, Hilborn Room and the Bixby Room, Hilborn 
Room Kitchen.  

 
(b) In addition to the foregoing, the City shall pay to YMCA a management 

fee (the “Management Fee”) of $ 198,802.00 in 2018 and $ 203,772.00 in 2019 
and $208,866.00 in 2020 and $214,089.00 in 2021 and $219,441.00 in 2022, 
subject to funding by legislative authority.  

The Management Fee shall be payable in quarterly installments on the last 
business day of each January, April, July and October during the term hereof, 
commencing on January 1, 2018. Future years’ management fees will be 
negotiated based on the Program Reports submitted by the YMCA.  

 
 

 
7. TERM AND TERMINATION  

 
(a) The term of this agreement shall commence on January 2, 2018 and 

shall continue through December 21, 2020, subject to funding by the legislative 
authority.  The city can renew this agreement for two additional one year terms 
(2021 and 2022) under the fee schedule set forth in Section 6 by providing 
written notice to the YMCA 30 days prior to the expiration of the contract term. 

 
(b)  Breach or Default. If one party to this Agreement breaches, or defaults 

in performance of, any material term, condition or provision of this Agreement, 
the other party to this Agreement shall give to the other party written notice of 
such default. The defaulting party shall thereafter have sixty (60) days within 
which to cure any such default. Unless and within such sixty (60) day period: (i) 
such breach or default has been cured; or (ii) a cure thereof has been commenced 
which, in the reasonable opinion of the party giving the notice, will correct the 
breach or default so long as such cure is continued with diligence, the party 
giving such notice shall thereafter have the right to terminate this Agreement 
upon written notice to the defaulting party, without prejudice to the other rights 
and remedies available to the non-defaulting party at law or in equity. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, YMCA shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement upon fifteen (15) days notice if the City fails to timely pay any 
installment of the Management Fee to YMCA.  

 
(c) Voluntary Termination. Either party to this Agreement shall have the 

right to terminate this Agreement without cause by giving ninety (90) days prior 
written notice of termination to the other party. In such event, this Agreement 
shall thereupon terminate at the end of such one ninety (90) day period and 
neither party shall thereafter have liability hereunder, except with respect to 
defaults in existence on the date of termination.  

 
(d) Force Majeure. In the event that further lawful performance of any non-

monetary obligation under this Agreement, or any part hereof, by either party 



   

8 
 

shall be rendered impossible by, or as a consequence of, any law, order or act of 
any government or political subdivision thereof having jurisdiction over such 
party, or by acts of public enemies, war, strikes or other labor disturbances, 
fires, floods, acts of God or any causes of like or different kind beyond the control 
of either party, said party shall be excused from any such failure to perform to 
the extent such failure is attributable to such cause or causes, except that the 
party whose performance has been affected must take all reasonable means to 
remedy the force majeure occurrence as expeditiously as possible, failing which 
relief under this Paragraph 7(d) shall not be available to such party. In the event 
such force majeure occurrence continues unabated for thirty (30) days, then 
either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with 
the provisions of Paragraph 7(b) hereof.  
 

(e) Survival of Terms. Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this 
Agreement, any provisions hereof that expressly or otherwise by their intent are 
intended to survive beyond such expiration or earlier termination shall survive.  
 
 (f) All data collected by the YMCA as part of this contract, including but 
not limited to participant lists and payment records, are the property of the City. 
Upon termination of the contract, those materials covering the last 12 months 
will be provided to the City to ensure a smooth transition.  
 
8. LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 
(a) YMCA Liability. YMCA shall be liable for damages which, due to YMCA's 

negligence or the negligence of YMCA's employees, occur (i) to the Recreation 
Facilities, or its fixtures, equipment and furnishings, (ii) to tools, equipment, 
machinery, trade fixtures, or other items provided to YMCA by the City, (iii) to 
property of other users of the Recreation Facilities, or (iv) to persons for injuries 
or death, but YMCA shall have no liability for injuries or other damages to any 
person caused (v) by any disrepair of the Recreation Facilities existing as of the 
date of this Agreement and indicated in the initial walkthrough of the premises, 
or arising due to the failure of the City to make Major Repairs or (vi) by any fault 
(known or unknown, overt or covert) in the design or construction of the 
Recreation Facilities.  

 
(b) Indemnification by YMCA. YMCA shall hold harmless and indemnify 

the City from any and all claims for damages to property, injuries or death or 
other liability arising from (i) YMCA's negligence, or the negligence of YMCA's 
employees, (ii) claims of persons with whom YMCA contracts, or (iii) claims of 
unlawful discrimination by YMCA's employees or by applicants for employment 
with YMCA, including, but not limited to, costs, fees and expenses (including 
attorneys' fees and expenses) incurred by the City as a result of such claims.  

 
(c) City Liability. The City shall be liable for all damages which YMCA shall 

incur for damages to property, injuries or death or other liability arising from (i) 



   

9 
 

the City’s negligence or the negligence of the City’s employees or (ii) the failure of 
the City to make Major Repairs, for which YMCA has given the City notice, 
including, but not limited to costs, fees and expenses (including attorneys’ fees 
and expenses) incurred by the YMCA as a result thereof.   

 
 
 

 
9. INSURANCE  

 
(a) YMCA Liability Insurance. YMCA shall at all times during the term of 

this Agreement keep in force a policy of commercial general liability insurance, 
which may be through an endorsement on a blanket liability insurance policy. 
YMCA's insurance shall name the City as an additional insured against any and 
all damages and liability on account of or arising out of injuries to or the death 
of persons in the Recreation Facilities or engaged in programming activities 
conducted by YMCA hereunder, or for property damage, arising out of or relating 
to YMCA's use of the Recreation Facilities or the Parks Facilities, in the minimum 
amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit on an 
occurrence basis (such additional insured's coverage under YMCA’s commercial 
general liability policy to be primary). Said policy shall be issued by an insurer 
licensed to do business within the state of Ohio which is rated at least A- and 
VIII in Best's Insurance Reports, or equivalent. In addition to the foregoing, 
Tenant shall maintain Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000.00) "umbrella" coverage 
applicable to the Recreation Facilities and the Parks Facilities. The minimum 
limits hereinbefore set forth may, at the City's option, be increased by such 
amounts during the term hereof as the City shall reasonably determine, based 
upon the periodic analysis of such coverage by an independent insurance 
consultant. Tenant shall deliver to the City certificates of insurance or duplicate 
originals of each such policy, naming the City as an additional named insured.  

 
(b) City Property Insurance. Throughout the term hereof, the City shall, at 

the City's sole cost and expense, provide and maintain or cause to be provided 
and maintained a property insurance policy insuring all Recreation Facilities 
from all the hazards and perils normally covered by the Causes of Loss-Special 
Form. The foregoing property coverage shall be provided in amounts sufficient to 
provide one hundred percent (100%) of the full replacement cost of all such 
improvements.  

 
(c) City Liability Insurance. The City shall at all times during the Term of 

this Agreement, maintain a policy of commercial general liability insurance, 
which may be through an endorsement on a blanket liability insurance policy.  
The city’s insurance shall name YMCA as an additional insured against any and 
all damages and liability on account of or arising out of injuries to or the death 
of persons or for property damage, occurring upon, in or about the Recreation 
Facilities or the Park Facilities, arising due to the sole act or neglect of the city 



   

10 
 

or its employees, in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 ($1,000,000) combined 
single limit on an occurrence basis.  Said policy shall be issues by an insurer 
licensed to do business in the state of Ohio which is rated at least A and VIII in 
Best’s Insurance Reports or equivalent.  In addition, to the foregoing, the city 
shall maintain Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000) “umbrella” coverage applicable 
to the Recreation Facilities and Park Facilities.  The city shall deliver to YMCA 
certificates of insurance or duplicate originals of each such policy, naming YMCA 
as an additional insured to protect the YMCA from the city’s sole negligence and 
not for negligent acts that are solely caused by the YMCA.  

 
(d) Policy Requirements. The policies described in this Paragraph 9 shall: 

(i) comply with the requirements hereof in form and content; (ii) contain an 
express waiver of any right of subrogation by the insurance company against the 
City and YMCA and their respective agents and employees (and any certificate of 
insurance shall so state); (iii) contain a provision that such policies shall not be 
canceled and that it shall continue in full force and effect unless at least thirty 
(30) days prior written notice has been given to the City and YMCA of such 
cancellation or termination; (iv) not be materially changed without prior notice 
to the City and YMCA; and (v) be issued by a company with a rating of at least 
A-, as listed by A.M. Best. If for any reason the Causes of Loss-Special Form is 
not customarily used in the insurance industry, then the property insurance 
policy then in effect shall at least provide coverage for the following perils: fire, 
lightning, windstorm and hail, explosion, smoke, aircraft and vehicles, riot and 
civil commotion, vandalism and malicious mischief, sprinkler leakage, sinkhole 
and collapse, and increased costs of construction and demolition due to law, 
ordinance and inflation.  

 
(e) Worker's Compensation Insurance. Worker’s compensation insurance 

in compliance with State of Ohio Worker's Compensation laws shall be 
maintained by YMCA, at YMCA’s sole cost and expense.  

 
(f) Waiver of Subrogation. The parties release each other, and their 

respective authorized representatives, from any claims for damage to any person 
or to property in or on the Recreation Facilities to the extent covered by or 
required to be covered by the insurance of the parties under this Agreement. The 
City and YMCA shall each have their insurance policies issued in such form as 
to waive any right of subrogation which might otherwise exist.  

 
10. INTERPRETATIVE PROVISIONS 

 
(a) Binding Agreement. At all times, this Agreement shall inure to the 

benefit of and constitute a binding obligation of the City, the YMCA, and their 
respective successors.  

 
(b) Entire Understanding. This Agreement sets forth the entire 

understanding between the parties concerning the subject matter of this 



   

11 
 

Agreement, and incorporates all prior and contemporaneous negotiations and 
understandings.  

 
(c) Independent Parties. This Agreement does not constitute, nor shall it 

be construed as constituting, a partnership, joint venture or similar business 
relationship between the City and YMCA. Neither party shall have the right to 
make representations on behalf of the other party or to obligate or bind the other 
party in any manner whatsoever, except as may be expressly provided in this 
Agreement.  

 
(d) No Waiver. No waiver by either party of any default by the other party 

of any term or provision contained herein shall be deemed to be a waiver of such 
term or provision unless the waiver is in writing signed by the party to be 
charged, and no such waiver shall in any event be deemed a waiver of any 
subsequent default under the same or any other term or provision contained 
herein.  

 
(e) Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, or any covenant, 

obligation or agreement contained herein is determined by a court to be invalid 
or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect any other provision, 
covenant, obligation or agreement, each of which shall be construed and 
enforced as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were not contained in this 
Agreement. Such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any valid and 
enforceable application thereof, and each such provision, covenant, obligation or 
agreement, shall be deemed to be effective, operative, made, entered into or taken 
in the manner and to the full extent permitted by law.  

 
(f) Headings. The captions and headings in this Agreement shall be solely 

for convenience of reference and shall in no way define, limit or describe the 
scope or intent of any provisions, articles or sections of this Agreement.  

 
(g) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed by the 

provisions hereof and in accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio applicable 
to agreements to be performed in the State of Ohio.  

 
(h) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each 

of which when executed by the parties shall be deemed an original and all of 
which together shall be deemed the same Agreement.  

 
(i) Modifications. This Agreement may not be changed or terminated orally 

and may not be assigned by YMCA without the prior written consent of the City.  
 
(j) Specific Performance. In addition to all other rights and remedies 

provided at law or in equity, each of the parties shall have the right to specific 
performance of the terms of this Agreement in the event of breach of this 
Agreement by the other party.  



   

12 
 

 
(k) Cooperation. The parties hereto shall cooperate in good faith with each 

other in the provision of the Management Services during the term of this 
Agreement.  

 
(l) Notices. Any payment, consent, waiver, notice, demand, request or other 

instrument required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be 
deemed to have been properly given when delivered in person or sent by certified 
or registered United States mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, 
addressed:  
 
If to YMCA, to: 
 
The Young Men's Christian Association of Central Ohio 
Attention: Mr. Steve Ives 
40 West Long Street 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
If to the City, to: 
 
City of Delaware 
1 South Sandusky Street, 
Delaware, Ohio 43015 
Attn: City Manager 
 
Either party may change its address for notices by notice in the manner set forth 
above. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed 
and to be effective as of the day and year first above written. 
 

City of Delaware, Ohio, an Ohio political 
subdivision 
 
By:        
 
Its:          
 
The YMCA of Central Ohio, an Ohio not for 
profit corporation 
 
 
By:        
 
Its:          



   

13 
 

 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Darren M. Shulman, City Attorney  



   

14 
 

  
EXHIBIT A 

Program/Special Event Registration Fee 
    

Harmony In The Park Free 
Halloween Party Free 
Easter Egg Hunt Free 

Calls From The North Pole Free 
Healthy Kids Day Free 

Safety Town $35  
Dave Staley Triathlon Adult-$35 

  Youth-$25 
Pumpkin Run/Walk 5K Run/Walk-$30 

  1 Mile Walk-$20 
  Kids Sprint-$5 

Daddy-Daughter Dance $25/$10 each additional daughter 
Mother-Son Super Hero Party $25/$10 each additional son 

Safety Town $35  
Doggie Dive-In $5 pre-registered 

  $10 day of registration 
Youth Fire Camp $40  

Youth Police Camp $40  
    

T-Ball and Coach Pitch $40  
Mustang League Baseball $40  

Little League Baseball $45 
U-10 Softball $40  
U-12 Softball $45  

Youth Basketball $45  
Youth Flag Football $34 

Youth Soccer $40  
Youth Golf Lessons (Six Lessons) $26 
Adult Golf Lessons (Six Lessons) $75 

Youth Tennis Lessons $55  
Adult Tennis Lessons $80  

Stage A, B, 1, 2 & 3 Swimming Lessons $40  
Stage 4, 5, 6, & Speciality Classes $50  

    
Morning Swim Rates Free with Pool Pass 

  $3 Daily or $25 for Morning Swim Season  
  Pass 

DARTS Swim Pass $50 for Season 



   

15 
 

EXHIBIT A 

  
  

Program/Special Event Registration Fee 

  
  

Jack Florance Pool Daily Pass Adult-$6, Ages 3-17-$4 
Jack Florance Pool Season Pass Family of 2-$125 

  Family of 3-$145 
  Family of 4-$165 
  Family of 5-$185 

  Each Additional Person-$10/per person 
  Youth-$105 
  Adult-$110 
  Senior (62+)-$60 
    

Adult Softball $375-Summer Season 
  $275-Fall Season 

Adult Soccer $50-Individual 
  $250-Team 

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  



   

16 
 

EXHIBIT B 

  
  

Jack Florance Pool Rental 1-149 people-$250/hr 
  150 + people-$300/hr 
    

Ball Fields at Smith or Mingo Parks $25 for first game, $5 each additional 
  game. $100 deposit returned if field is 
  undamaged and clean. $20/hr for 
  lights 

Hilborn and Bixby Rooms $20/hr 
  Hilborn Kitchen-Additional $25/hr 
  Set Up/Tear Down-$40/per room 
    

Outdoor Picnic Shelter/Gazebo Rentals   
Weekday (Mon-Thurs) Single Block- $20 

  All Day-$40 
Weekend (Fri-Sat-Sun) Single Block-$50 

  All Day-$100 
    

Mingo 3 Season/Veterans Spray & Play Shelters   
Weekday (Mon-Thurs) Single Block-$40 

  All Day-$80 
Weekend (Fri-Sat-Sun) Single Block-$70 

  All Day-$130 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  9    DATE: 02/26/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-08    RESOLUTION NO:   
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
        
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Darren Shulman, City Attorney  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING SECTIONS 718.80 THROUGH 718.95 OF THE 
OHIO REVISED CODE. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
HB49 allows business taxpayers the option, starting with the 2018 tax year, to 
file one municipal net profit tax return through the Ohio Business Gateway for 
processing by the Ohio Department of Taxation instead of filing with the 
city.  Delaware joined a coalition of cities to challenge the central filing of tax 
returns (17 CV 010258 in Franklin County Common Pleas Court).  As a result, 
the deadline for implementation was extended to 2/24/18 by agreed order so the 
parties could prepare for a preliminary injunction.  While the city hopes it will 
prevail in its challenge, it must prepare in case the lawsuit is unsuccessful.  
 
UPDATE 2/22/2018:  On February 21, Judge Cain denied the preliminary 
injunction and dismissed the case.  Therefore, staff recommends passage at this 
meeting to comply with the requirements of the state legislation.  At this time, 
staff does not know if the dismissal will be appealed.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
In the event the lawsuit is unsuccessful or the injunction is not granted, the City 
will have to quickly comply with the provision requiring the city adopt the Ohio 
Revised Code provisions as well as notifying the state of our tax rate, or risk 



losing its authority to collect income taxes.  This ordinance is designed to comply 
with the adoption requirements of the bill, while preserving the city’s right to 
challenge it in court.  Having a first reading now puts the City in position to pass 
the legislation quickly if ultimately needed.  If this happens, a more thorough 
review of our tax code would be required to determine any substantive changes 
that must be made in addition to adopting the state code via this legislation. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
The state intends to take a percentage of taxes filed through its new system, so 
that will result in a decrease in tax dollars going to the City.  The city believes 
the State is also not in a good position to know whether taxes have been 
appropriately filed, which could impact collections. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
Allowing businesses in the city to file with the state would be a change in how 
tax returns are submitted and reviewed. 
 
PRESENTER(S):  
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   
None 



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 18-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING SECTIONS 718.80 
THROUGH 718.95 OF THE OHIO REVISED CODE. 

  
 WHEREAS, House Bill (H.B.) 49 of the 132nd General Assembly, the 
State’s general appropriations bill for the biennium, includes Section 803.100 
purporting to require that municipalities, on or before January 31, 2018, adopt 
certain municipal income tax provisions that are also adopted within H.B. 49 to 
authorize State officials to collect and administer municipal net profits taxes; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, Section 803.100 of H.B. 49 references and relies upon 
Section 718.04(A) of the Ohio Revised Code, which purports to make municipal 
income taxing authority conditional upon a municipality’s adoption of code 
sections as dictated by the State; and 
 

WHEREAS, although the municipal income tax provisions of H.B. 49, 
and Section 718.04(A) of the Ohio Revised Code, violate the Home Rule 
Amendment, the City nevertheless is compelled to adopt H.B. 49’s municipal 
income tax provisions (the provisions of sections 718.80, 718.81, 718.82, 
718.83, 718.84, 718.85, 718.851, 718.86, 718.87, 718.88, 718.89, 718.90, 
718.91, 718.92, 718.93, 718.94, and 718.95 of the Revised Code ) by ordinance 
or resolution, on or before January 31, 2018, to avoid any doubt or taxpayer 
challenge as to its ability to impose a municipal income tax under the terms of 
Section 803.100 of H.B. 49 and Section 718.04(A) of the Ohio Revised Code; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the City is a party to ongoing litigation (17 CV 010258 in the 
Franklin County Court of Common Pleas) seeking a declaration that the H.B. 
49 municipal income tax provisions, Section 718.04(A) of the Ohio Revised 
Code, and other provisions of Ohio law that usurp the powers of local self-
government are unconstitutional, and to enjoin all actions by state officials to 
implement the H.B. 49 municipal income tax provisions; and  

 
WHEREAS, by agreed order, the deadline for implementation was 

extended to 2/24/18 so the parties could prepare for a preliminary injunction 
hearing; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City, by enacting this Ordinance, does not concede the 
legality of H.B. 49’s municipal income tax provisions, Section 718.04(A) of the 
Ohio Revised Code, or any other law that is subject to the suit in which the 
City is participating, and reserves its right to continue prosecution of that 
lawsuit. 

 
 



 2 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF DELAWARE, 
DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO, that: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The City of Delaware adopts the provisions of sections 
718.80, 718.81, 718.82, 718.83, 718.84, 718.85, 718.851, 718.86, 718.87, 
718.88, 718.89, 718.90, 718.91, 718.92, 718.93, 718.94, and 718.95 of the 
Revised Code. 
 

SECTION 2.   That the City Council hereby expressly finds and 
determines that it does not concede the legality of H.B. 49’s municipal income 
tax provisions; Section 803.100 of H.B. 49; Section 718.04(A) of the Ohio 
Revised Code; or any other law that is the subject of the action pending in Case 
Number 2017 CV 10258 in the Franklin County Court of Common Pleas, and 
that the City reserves its rights to continue its participation in and prosecution 
of said litigation, and any other litigation challenging the State’s authority to 
dictate municipal tax collection and administration, and that adoption of this 
Ordinance shall not prejudice the claims of the City therein. 
 

SECTION 3.   It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of 
this council concerning and relating to the adoption of this legislation were 
adopted in an open meeting of Council, and that all deliberations of the council 
and/or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in 
meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements, 
including Section 121 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 

SECTION 4.   This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon the 
determination by the court that the provision requiring the City adopt the 
referenced sections is enforceable and no other legal action staying its 
enforcement is in effect, to cover the tax year beginning January 1, 2018. 
 

SECTION 5.   If the provisions in H.B. 49 are upheld, staff will review the 
provisions of its existing municipal tax code to determine if the adoption of the 
provisions in the Ohio Revised Code require changes. 

 
SECTION 6.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  



 3 

     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
  



FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  10  

ORDINANCE NO: 18-11  

READING: SECOND  

DATE: 02/26/2018 

RESOLUTION NO: 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES 

February 26, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL 
OF A REZONING AMENDMENT TO ALLOW A PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
FIRESTONE DRIVE ON APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
PO/I (PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT) FOR AN ACTIVELY 
OWNED AND MANAGED 40 DWELLING UNIT LOW AND MODERATE INCOME 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT. 

BACKGROUND: 
See attached report and staff memo for revised proposal update.  

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on February 7, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 18-11 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING 
CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING 
AMENDMENT TO ALLOW A PMU (PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 250 CURTIS STREET 
ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ON 
APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
PO/I (PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT) 
FOR AN ACTIVELY OWNED AND MANAGED 40 
DWELLING UNIT LOW AND MODERATE INCOME 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of February 7, 2018 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment to allow a PMU (Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) at 250 Curtis Street on the north side of Firestone 
Drive on approximately 3.64 acres on property zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional District) for an actively owned and managed 40 dwelling 
unit low and moderate income affordable housing development (2017-3115). 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Rezoning Amendment to allow a PMU (Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) at 250 Curtis Street on the north side of Firestone 
Drive on approximately 3.64 acres on property zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional District) for an actively owned and managed 40 dwelling 
unit low and moderate income affordable housing development, is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. Any new structure(s) or any change of land use shall require 
conformance to all provisions of the Development Text and any 
conditions of approval. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
 
 



 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 







































































 

 

 •  •  •  

 

 
Open Letter to City Council and Delaware Community 

Community and City Leaders: 

Delaware STEP has been working with our citizens who live in the culture of poverty in our community.  Our 
mission and goals revolve around enabling willing individuals to move from dependence to independence 
through education, collaboration and partnerships.  It is in that spirit that we are grateful to participate in 
the discussion surrounding the Del-Mor project on 250 Curtis Street. 

We at STEP feel deeply that the sign of a healthy and vibrant community is the success and care for its least 
able members, ideally allowing for those individual to lead full and independent lives. Del-More has been 
helping our disabled populations for over 20 years without incident and without praise.  They have 
provided permanent and compassionate solutions for those who would not otherwise have independent 
options. It is easy to see how this project aids the citizens who will be able to live within its walls, but the 
benefits go far beyond those individual benefits.  

We at STEP believe that increasing the independence and care for our least able members has direct and 
tangible benefits to the community as a whole. We believe it not only helps the individuals, but it enriches 
the community by reducing emergency interventions, lowering public health costs and increasing ability to 
participate in the economics of the community.   

Citizens with mental illness will not disappear if this project does not move forward.  They will move to less 
supportive options and outcomes that cannot be measured or improved. This project and these hearings 
allow much more community control over the use of this land and the outcomes than could be expected 
from a for-profit developer and does not remove any of the needs of those suffering from mental 
disabilities. 

It is with this understanding that Delaware STEP supports the Del-Mor project and urges the community to 
rally behind this effective organization to continue its amazing and successful work on behalf of our 
vulnerable citizens. 

With respect for our community leaders and for all our citizens, 

Mindy Leitwein 
President 

 

 
February 16, 2018 



































































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 02/26/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-12    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       FEBRUARY 26, 2018 AT 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL 
OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ON APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES ON 
PROPERTY ZONED PO/I (PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT) FOR 
AN ACTIVELY OWNED AND MANAGED 40 DWELLING UNIT LOW AND 
MODERATE INCOME AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report and staff memo for revised proposal update.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on February 7, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 18-12 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING 
CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 250 
CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
FIRESTONE DRIVE ON APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES 
ON PROPERTY ZONED PO/I (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT) FOR AN 
ACTIVELY OWNED AND MANAGED 40 DWELLING 
UNIT LOW AND MODERATE INCOME AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of February 7, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) at 250 Curtis Street on the north 
side of Firestone Drive on approximately 3.64 acres on property zoned PO/I 
(Planned Office/Institutional District) for an actively owned and managed 40 
dwelling unit low and moderate income affordable housing development (2017-
3116). 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) at 250 Curtis Street on the north 
side of Firestone Drive on approximately 3.64 acres on property zoned PO/I 
(Planned Office/Institutional District) for an actively owned and managed 40 
dwelling unit low and moderate affordable housing development, is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 02/26/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-13    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF 
A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR AN ACTIVELY OWNED AND 
MANAGED 40 DWELLING UNIT LOW AND MODERATE INCOME AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
FIRESTONE DRIVE ON APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
PO/I PMU (PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report and staff memo for revised proposal update.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on February 7, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 18-13 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING 
CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR AN ACTIVELY OWNED 
AND MANAGED 40 DWELLING UNIT LOW AND 
MODERATE INCOME AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
DEVELOPMENT AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ON 
APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
PO/I PMU (PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT). 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of February 7, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for an actively 
owned and managed 40 dwelling unit low and moderate income affordable 
housing development at 250 Curtis Street on the north side of Firestone Drive 
on approximately 3.64 acres on property zoned PO/I PMU (Planned 
Office/Institutional District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (2017-
3117). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Preliminary Development Plan for an actively 
owned and managed 40 dwelling unit low and moderate income affordable 
housing development at 250 Curtis Street on the north side of Firestone Drive 
on approximately 3.64 acres on property zoned PO/I PMU (Planned 
Office/Institutional District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is 
hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. The applicant shall contribute $40,000 for the proposed Curtis Street 
north bound left hand turn lane onto Firestone Drive along with 
dedicating the appropriate amount of right-of-way per the City 
Engineer. 



3. A guardrail or equivalent as approved by the City Engineer shall be 
installed along Firestone Drive adjacent to the proposed retention 
pond. 

4. The number of required parking spaces shall be reduced to 40 from 
the required 96 parking spaces. 

5. The dumpster shall be enclosed by a brick or stone wall that matches 
the building with wood doors painted or stained to match. 

6. The proposed apartment buildings shall achieve compliance with the 
design standards of the approved development text.  

7. A tree preservation area shall be located on the western 150 feet of the 
property within an easement with the appropriate language that 
would need to be reviewed and approved by staff and then be recorded 
at the county.  

8. The Tree Preservation Regulations in Chapter 1168 pertaining to tree 
replacement and preservation shall be addressed prior to or 
concurrent with the Final Development Plan approval. 

9. The existing tree line along the northern property line shall be 
preserved as much as possible while planting additional trees and 
shrubs to supplement the screening along the northern property line. 
The exact type and location of screening shall be determined during 
the Final Development Plan approval process 

10. Street trees shall be installed along Curtis Street in Phase 2 of the 
development. 

11. Any streets trees in Phase 1 damaged by construction shall be 
replaced. 

12. Any landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade 
Tree Commission. 

13. A lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official. 

14. Any signage shall be documented on the Final Development Plan and 
achieve compliance with the adopted Gateways and Corridor Plan. 

15. The entire development would have to achieve compliance with the 
minimum engineering, public works and fire department 
requirements.  

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 



 
 
 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 02/26/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-14    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       FEBRUARY 26, 2018 AT 7:30 P.M. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL 
OF A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT ON THE FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP FROM MEDIUM DENSITY SINGLE FAMILY TO MIXED USE AT 250 
CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ON 
APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED PO/I PMU (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) FOR AN ACTIVELY OWNED AND MANAGED 40 DWELLING UNIT 
LOW AND MODERATE INCOME AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report and staff memo for revised proposal update.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1130 Amendments of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on February 7, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 18-14 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING 
CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT ON THE 
FUTURE LAND USE MAP FROM MEDIUM DENSITY 
SINGLE FAMILY TO MIXED USE AT 250 CURTIS 
STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE 
ON APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES ON PROPERTY 
ZONED PO/I PMU (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) FOR AN ACTIVELY 
OWNED AND MANAGED 40 DWELLING UNIT LOW 
AND MODERATE INCOME AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
DEVELOPMENT. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of February 7, 2018 
recommended approval of a Comprehensive Plan Amendment on the Future 
Land Use Map from Medium Density Single Family to Mixed Use at 250 Curtis 
Street on the north side of Firestone Drive on approximately 3.64 acres on 
property zoned PO/I PMU (Planned Office/Institutional with a Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) for an actively owned and managed 40 dwelling unit low 
and moderate income affordable housing development (2017-3118), 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Comprehensive Plan Amendment on the Future 
Land Use Map from Medium Density Single Family to Mixed Use at 250 Curtis 
Street on the north side of Firestone Drive on approximately 3.64 acres on 
property zoned PO/I PMU (Planned Office/Institutional with a Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) for an actively owned and managed 40 dwelling unit low 
and moderate income affordable housing development, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 02/26/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-13 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  --- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A SISTER CITY VISIT TO BAUMHOLDER, 
GERMANY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2012, City Council sent a delegation to Sister City Baumholder, Germany. In 
advance of that trip, legislation was introduced to declare the trip a public 
purpose and allow a portion of the trip to be paid for by the city.  That resolution 
did not pass and members paid for the trip on their own.   In 2017 City Council 
approved Resolution No. 17-19, supporting public funds, as budgeted in the 
City’s 2017 travel/training line item to be used to pay the costs of participating 
in the delegation to travel to Sister City, Sakata, Japan.    
 
The City of Delaware’s Sister City, Baumholder, Germany has requested that a 
delegation attend their opening and celebration of the Golden Angel Cultural 
Center in May 2018.  The Cultural Center is to reflect the American influence on 
their city post War World II to the present, and consists of a regional museum, 
café, city library, tourist information, and a designated space for temporary 
exhibitions.   The Regional Museum focuses on the history of the region, as well 
as the establishment of the military training area and the influence of the 
presence of US Forces on the region and living together for decades.     
 
In preparation for the trip the City of Delaware is reaching out to the public to 
find veterans stationed at Baumholder to take a group picture to present to 



officials at the celebration.  The Delegation will meet with city officials to discuss 
a future cultural exchange of art to be displayed in their exhibition area.    
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
The attached resolution establishes the visit as a public purposes and authorizes 
the use of public funds to help pay for it.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-13 
 
 A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A SISTER CITY VISIT 

TO BAUMHOLDER, GERMANY. 
 

WHEREAS, City Council believes strengthening and maintaining Sister 
City relationships and exploring new partnerships is valuable and necessary to 
the on-going economic and cultural growth of the City of Delaware; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has established several Sister City 

relationships through the years; the first in 1963 with Goulborn, New South 
Wales, Australia, as a part of the “People-to-People Programs: established by 
President Dwight D. Eisenhower, and then with Omuntninsk, Russia, and 
Baumholder, Germany; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has previously sent a delegation of City officials to 

sister cities Baumholder, Germany and Sakata, Japan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Baumholder has extended a formal invitation to 

the City of Delaware to send a delegation to Baumholder, Germany for their 
opening of the Golden Angel Cultural Center. 

 
WHEREAS, the exchange of information and ideas between sister cities 

continues to benefit the City of Delaware. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. Sending representatives of the City of Delaware to 
Baumholder, Germany as part of the delegation achieves a public purpose. 
 
 SECTION 2. Public funds, as budgeted in the City’s 2018 travel/training 
line item, may be used to pay the costs of participating in the delegation. 
 
 SECTION 3.  Any travel expenses must conform with the City’s travel 
reimbursement policy. 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 11-24 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A SISTER CITY 
RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DELAWARE, OHIO, AND 
BAUMHOLDER, GERMANY. 

WHEREAS, the City of Delaware, Ohio, United States of America, and the 
City of Baumholder, Germany, have interests in furthering people-to-people 
ties between our cities; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Delaware and the City of Baumholder can 
encourage a mutual exchange in the fields of culture, economy, and otherwise 
in recognition of the contribution to international understanding and 
friendship, and 

WHEREAS, the two cities can develop friendship between the citizens of 
our two cities and contribute to the furtherance of goodwill between the United 
States and Germany, thus making a significant contribution to the prosperity 
and the peace of the world; and 

WHEREAS, the men's SOCCER team from Ohio Wesleyan University, 
located in Delaware, has been making periodic tours to Baumholder since 
1990; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Delaware desires to establish this relationship, and do hereby propose a Sister 
City relationship with Baumholder, Germany. 

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 

PASSED: ~tf ,2011 

ATTEST: C!IJtdiAJJ kO 
CITY CLERK 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  15    DATE: 02/26/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO:  18-14 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  
        
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Dean Stelzer, Finance Director  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ADVANCEMENT OF CASH FROM THE GENERAL 
FUND TO THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
The City is intending to make improvements to the former Delaware Gazette 
Building in the near future.  The cost of the improvements may ultimately be 
covered by a debt financing to occur at a later date. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
To enable the City to enter into a construction contract prior to issuing debt to 
finance the improvements. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
The sources of funds to pay for the improvements will be some combination of 
rent payments from the intended tenant, municipal impact fee funds, and 
general fund sources. 
 
 
 



POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S):  
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Go to a second reading 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   
Declaration of Official Intent 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-14        
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
ADVANCEMENT OF CASH FROM THE GENERAL 
FUND TO THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City plans to enter into a contract to make 
improvements to City owned property located at 18 East William Street 
(former Delaware Gazette Building); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the improvements to be made will enable the City to 
lease a portion of the building to a private entity and to utilize a portion of 
the building for City offices; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Director has executed a Declaration of 
Official Intent to enable the City to issue tax exempt debt at a later date to 
finance the improvements being undertaken; and  

 
 WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the City will enter into a 
construction contract to make the building improvements before a debt 
financing is completed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, sufficient funds to cover the amount of the construction 
project are not currently available in the Capital Improvement Fund. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That an advancement of cash in the amount of 
$1,750,000.00 is hereby authorized from the General Fund to the Capital 
Improvement Fund. 
 
 SECTION 2.  That repayment of the advanced cash will be made 
from a debt financing to occur in 2019.   
 
 SECTION 3. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________      ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 16    DATE: 02/26/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-18    RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       MARCH 12, 2018 at 7:20 P.M. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 933.09 OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO REGARDING INTOXICATING 
BEVERAGES PROHIBITED, AND REPEALING EXISTING SECTION 933.09 IN 
ITS ENTIRETY, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The introduction of beer sales is aimed at increasing concession sales and 
providing the public a legal option for while playing golf. In 2017 a public working 
group was formed to complete a strategic plan for sustainability and one of the 
recommendations of this plan was to introduce beer sales. The plan was adopted 
by the Parks and Recreation board on February 21, 2017. 
 
The draft included in this packet is identical to the one previously submitted in 
April of 2014 to Council and was tabled.  If passed, staff would apply for a liquor 
permit to sell beer at the golf course.  However, should Council give future 
direction to sell other types of alcohol, the language of the ordinance would be 
broad enough to permit it, assuming the proper permit was obtained.  If Council 
would prefer to limit the language to beer only, the draft can be changed for a 
future reading.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 



To amend the current ordinance that prohibits alcohol sales and introduces beer 
sales for Hidden Valley Golf Course. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Reviewed by Parks and Recreation Board February 21, 2017 as part of the 
approval of the Hidden Valley Golf Course Strategic Plan for Sustainability, 
unanimously approved. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
It is estimated that alcohol (beer) sales will conservatively increase revenues at 
HVGC by $5,000-$8,000. There will be some initial costs to implement the 
change (included in 2018 budget) and they are estimated as follows: 
 Wages     $2,500 Seasonal ranger, salary  
         supplemented by course 
         credit 
 Ice Maker     $1,650 
 Beverage Refrigerator   $2,000 
 Liquor Permit/Processing fee  $476 
 City Insurance Annual increase $350   
 Miscellaneous    $800  coolers, signs, etc. 
 
 Total Start up fees   $7,776 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
Clubhouse staff will require additional education in managing beer sales and 
additional signage will be necessary to deter patrons from bringing alcohol 
purchased off premises. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager, 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Hidden Valley Golf Course Strategic Plan For Sustainability 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-18 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 933.01 OF THE 
CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE, OHIO REGARDING INTOXICATING 
BEVERAGES PROHIBITED, AND REPEALING 
EXISTING SECTION 933.01 IN ITS ENTIRETY, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That Section 933.09 of Chapter 933 of the Codified 
Ordinances of the City of Delaware is hereby amended and replaced in its 
entirety by the following new section: 
 
933.09  PARK HOURS AND CONDITIONS OF USE.INTOXICATING 
BEVERAGES PROHIBITED, EXCEPTION FOR ALCOHOL SOLD BY CITY AT 
HIDDEN VALLEY GOLF COURSE 
 
 (A) THE CITY MAY SELL ALCOHOL AT THE HIDDEN VALLEY GOLF 
COURSE IF IT OBTAINS THE REQUIRED PERMITS AND INSURANCE.  
 

(B) No person shall transport, distribute, possess, or consume 
intoxicating beverages in any City park, except that the consumption of beer 
may be allowed for a specific group function at Hidden Valley Golf Course IF 
PURCHASED ONSITE FROM THE CITY. by permit issues for that function 
THE CITY MAY OFFER ALCOHOL AT SPECIAL EVENTS AT THE HIDDEN 
VALLEY GOLF COURSE, INCLUDING EVENTS HELD OUTSIDE OF 
REGULAR PARK HOURS, IF APPROVED by the City Manager under the 
following conditions: 
 
 (a)1 The function shall be restricted to a very specific facility or area. 

(b)2 The function shall not coincide with youth activity in an adjacent 
area. 

(c)3 The function shall not interfere with or disrupt normal use of 
adjacent park facilities. 

(d)4  The group applying for a permit shall have maintained a high 
standard of conduct for such functions. 

(e)5 The group has liquor liability insurance and property and general 
liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000, UNLESS THE 
CITY MANAGER APPROVES OF A LOWER AMOUNT. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 



formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 3.  That existing Section 933.09 of the Codified Ordinances of 

the City of Delaware is hereby repealed in its entirety. 
 

SECTION 4. EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public 
peace, safety, health, and welfare of the City by allowing the City to begin beer 
sales at the start of the golf season, and as such will be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its passage. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULES SUSPENSION:  YEAS____ NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
  
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



Adopted by Parks and Recreation Board : Febuary 21,2017 

 

 

HIDDEN VALLEY GOLF COURSE 
STRATEGIC PLAN FOR 
SUSTAINABILITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 
HVGC Working Group: 
Josh Bricker  Parks and Recreation Board 
Brian Canavan  Citizen 
Scott Fanok  Citizen 
Lucas Ratliff  Citizen 
Ed Schlote  Citizen 
Cindy Sheets  Citizen 
Scott Zagorski  Citizen 
 
Parks and Natural Resource Department: 
Khris Kohler  Golf Course Superintendent 
Linda Mathews  City Staff Liaison 
Ted Miller  Parks & Natural Resource Director 
 

 

HVGC 



HIDDEN VALLEY GOLF COURSE STRATEGIC PLAN FOR SUSTAINABILITY   

Page | 1  
February 21, 2017 

The Challenge 
 
The Hidden Valley Golf Course has been operating at a revenue loss for the past several years. With the 
current financial trend the golf course will not be able to sustain itself and will deplete the fund balance 
within 3-4 years. The golf course has always been marketed as a public facility that serves the 
community with a challenging par 3 course with affordable fees. 
 
The four challenges intended to be addressed through this strategic planning effort are: 

1. Seeking operating efficiencies to reduce operating expenditures, where possible; while 
maintaining current course standards. 

2. Encouraging increased golf play, thereby increasing revenue. 
3. Establishing an ongoing strategy for funding necessary capital repair and repair projects. 
4. Increasing revenue per round to address increasing operating costs due to inflation while 

providing a cost value to our citizens. 
 

Background 
 
The Hidden Valley Golf Course is operated by the Parks and Natural Resource Department as an 
enterprise fund revenues generated from fees support operations and capital repair and replacement 
projects. The course is a 1,647 yard, par 28, 9 hole course that opened in 1968. The City began operating 
the course in 1975. 
 
The golf course revenue began declining in 2004 and typically loses about $15,000 a year which has 
been covered by the fund balance. The City has initiated several steps including cutting operating costs, 
clubhouse remodeling (2016) and personnel changes. At the end of 2016, it was decided to form a 
working group comprised of local citizens and city staff with an interest in improving the golf course to 
increase revenue. Two categories were identified where improvement could be done that would be 
beneficial to revenues Marketing and Operations. 
 

Marketing 
 
Goal 1. Adding a golf specific social media component to market and inform the public- utilizing  
 the city Facebook page and establishing a Twitter account to distribute or gather   
 information. 
 Objective 1: Inform the public about weather/maintenance/special event related closings or  
   limited hours (voicemail will still be utilized on land line) . 
 
 Objective 2: Advertising course specials or special events 
  Action Items:  

 Social media accounts will be used to advertise. 
 
 Objective 3: Gather public feedback on improvements 
  Action Items:  

 Golf Course Superintendent will notify Community Affairs Office of any 
updates. 

 Plan special events and advertise on social media. 



HIDDEN VALLEY GOLF COURSE STRATEGIC PLAN FOR SUSTAINABILITY   

Page | 2  
February 21, 2017 

Goal 2. Promote outings, leagues and tournaments to engage the community. 
 Objective 1: Reorganize the Little Brown Jug tournament to restore as a valued community  
   event. 
  Action Items:  

 City Staff/Working Group to begin search for new event organizer and 
supporter. 

 If event is continued: 

 establish date that would allow for maximum participants (prior 
to school golf season). 

 involve local schools in promoting. 
  
 Objective 2: Advertise to local businesses in an effort to promote league play. 
  Action Items:  

 offer special discounts to businesses that would align with wellness and 
employee benefit packages. 

 
 Objective 3: Introduce trending golf games that attract family oriented events. 
  Action Items:  

 Facilitate golf activities such as “Games on the Range” where range ball 
targets are added to the driving range such as Golf-Tic Tac Toe, 21, 
Climb the Ladder, and H.O.R.S.E. or create your own point scoring game 
with the targets. Promote food (possibly catered) and beverage menu. 

 Introduce Big Hole Golf where the cup increases from 4.25” to 8”. This 
would allow for faster play and open up the game to a wider audience. 

 
Goal 3. Engage the community. 
 Objective 1: Market to millennial generation. 
  Action Items:  

 Millennial generation values time so promote opportunities at HVGC to 
complete a round of golf in 1 and ½ hours or less. 

 Promote a family night golf, where kids are welcome to complete 
rounds with parents. 

 Promotions should focus on evenings and weekends. 
 Promotions through Facebook (City’s page), Instagram, Twitter and 

YMCA. 
 
 Objective 2: Market to senior generation. 
  Action Items:  

 Offer discounts for non-peak times to try and fill playing voids. 
 Promote access to the course working with adjacent senior 

communities. 
 
 Objective 3: Integrate the course into the fabric of the surrounding communities 
  Action Items:  

 Open the course to additional recreational activities such as a multi-use 
trail that aligns with Delaware Run allowing the non-golfing public to 
experience and appreciate the beauty of the course. 



HIDDEN VALLEY GOLF COURSE STRATEGIC PLAN FOR SUSTAINABILITY   

Page | 3  
February 21, 2017 

 
 Objective 4: Expand the marketing database. 
  Action Items:  

 Install a point of sale system that tracks all the golfers that use the 
course so that events and specials can be communicated. Improve 
database for accurate tracking of clientele to identify and categorize. 

 Train staff to properly use bar code system to increase accuracy of sales 
system. 

 Reach out to different clientele and open new markets such as students 
from the high schools, middle schools and Ohio Wesleyan University 

 Gauge interest in The First Tee program and evaluate. 
 Promote a “Factory” League that targets the 1st shift workforce, league 

play would start at 3:30 would fill the typically slow periods. 
 
 Objective 5: User Surveys. 
  Action Items:  

 Utilize Twitter to gather public feedback on how to improve the course. 
 Accept suggestions through clubhouse staff. 
 Monitor social media to gain feedback on new or existing events. 
 Update website to allow comments. 

Operations 
 
Goal 1. Review revenue sources and look for opportunities to increase revenues. 
 Objective 1: Review course rates and suggest increases/decreases. 
  Action Items  

 Strive to stay 10% under the regional average. 
 Adjust the course rates (recommended by Parks & Recreation Board- 

1.17.17). 
 
 Objective 2: Introduce alcohol sales. 
  Action Items:  

 Alcohol introduction schedule: 

 Will require a 10-12 weeks for permit processing. 

 Initial investment of $3,500-$4,500 for ice maker, refrigerator 
and coolers. 

 Ideally a decision by beginning of March would allow lead time 
for sales in May. 

 First year will require pay down of startup costs. 
 Regularly train staff that serve alcohol on protocols to minimize 

problems. 
 On site consumption only 

 
 Objective 3: City staff to review golf course staffing options to maximize efficiency. 
  Action Items:  

 Golf Course Superintendent may need to dedicate time in clubhouse. 
 Utilize seasonal staff when possible, to reduce operational fees. 



HIDDEN VALLEY GOLF COURSE STRATEGIC PLAN FOR SUSTAINABILITY   

Page | 4  
February 21, 2017 

 Introduce volunteer staff to capture lost sales and move play along 
during busy periods 

 
 Objective 4: Review sponsorships to cover costs of materials and increase revenues. 
  Action Items: 

 Look into sponsors on scorecards. 
 Look into hole sponsors. 

 
Goal 2. Identify a Capital Improvement Plan funding repair and replacement of facility infrastructure. 
 Objective 1: Develop a Capital Improvement Plan that analyzes the infrastructure and  
   associated life cycle costs. 
  Action Items:  

 Provide cost estimates and estimated life cycle for capital 
improvements, examples of repair and replacement projects include: 

 Ongoing cart path repair and replacement costs. 

 Irrigation system- replace faulty heads. 

 Stream bank restoration. 

 Equipment replacement. 
 

Implementation Plan 
FY 2017 

 Parks and Natural Resource Staff to establish Instagram and Twitter accounts. Account will be 
managed by staff and inform public about HVGC and Parks and Natural Resource Department. 
Accounts to be linked to City’s Twitter and Facebook account so updates can be relayed. 
    No Cost 

 Implement Alcohol Sales. 
 Permit    -$376.00 
 Ice Maker  -$1,650.00 
 Beverage Refrigerator -$2,000.00 
 Estimated Revenue $10,000.00 (estimate based on $300 revenue per week and  

research from other courses) 
 Estimated Increase $6,000.00  (note first year profits will be offset by initial  
      equipment purchases) 
       

 Annual golf course fee review (completed). 
  Regular Rounds  $2,500.00 ($0.50 increase) 
  Student   -$750.00 ($1.00 decrease) 
  Estimated increase $1,750.00 
 

 Review staffing needs and determine if there are any areas where staffing can be more efficient. 
Volunteer staff No Cost  (allow golfing privileges based on volunteer  

  hours-course rangers) 
 

 Promote a “Games on the Range” event in early June. Based on popularity, determine if a series 
events should be promoted in July/August. 

Estimated Increase $1,500.00 
 



HIDDEN VALLEY GOLF COURSE STRATEGIC PLAN FOR SUSTAINABILITY   

Page | 5  
February 21, 2017 

 Determine if a new sponsor for the Little Brown Jug Tournament can be found. 
Estimated Increase $1,000.00 (organize to be profitable and allow course to  

recoup partial costs for hosting) 
 

 Propose league package that could be promoted to local businesses. Send information to local 
contacts. 

Estimated Increase  $2,000.00 (1 additional league, Tuesday evening) 
 

 Promote additional golf outings. 
Estimated Increase $2,000.00 (2-3 additional golf outings) 
 

 Prepare Capital Improvement Plan. 
 
Estimated Increase 2017  $14,250.00 
 
FY 2018 

 Purchase and implement updated point of sale system. 

 Annual fee review. 













































City Manager Report 20180226 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: February 22, 2018 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  

February 5 
* Chamber of Commerce Annual Dinner 
February 7 
* Facebook Live Presentation 
February 10 
* Council Retreat 
February 12 
* Rotary 
* Council Meeting 
February 15 
* Joint Meeting Council/County Commissioners 
February 19 
* Rotary 
February 20 
* Strand Board Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



February 
 

 

2018 
Meeting Schedule Council, Boards, Commissions, & Committees 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
    1 2 3 

       

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
  Public Works/Public 

Utilities Committee – 
6pm 

Civil Service 
Commission 3 pm 
Planning Commission 7 
pm 

  Council Retreat 
9am Hamilton Williams 
Center 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
 Council 7 pm  BZA 7pm-Cancelled County/Council Joint 

Meeting 7 pm-City Hall 
  

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
 Parking and Safety 

Committee 7pm 
Parks & Recreation 
Advisory Board 7 pm 

    

25 26 27 28    
 City Council 7 pm Shade Tree Commission 

7pm 
Finance 4 pm 
Historic Preservation 
Commission 7pm 

   

       
       

 



March 
 

 

2018 
Meeting Schedule Council, Boards, Commissions, & Committees 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
    1 2 3 

       

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
  Public Works/Public 

Utilities Committee – 
7pm 

Civil Service 
Commission 3 pm 
Planning Commission 7 
pm 

  Council Retreat 
Location/Time TBD 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
 Council 7 pm  BZA 7pm    

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
  

Council Work Session 
6pm 

Parks & Recreation 
Advisory Board 7 pm 

    

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 
 City Council 7 pm Shade Tree Commission 

7pm 
Historic Preservation 
Commission 7pm 

   

       
       

 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – FEBRUARY 26, 2018 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2018 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
AFSME  AFSME Clerical Group Contract 

MOU 
Negligible CMO 

OWU Agreement for EMS Services during 
2018 Graduation 

$116.20/hr Fire  

 


	01 20180122 council agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20180212 council minutes
	03 20180210 council retreat
	04 20180215 joint meeting minutes
	05 20171120 parking and safety minutes
	06 20180116  parb minutes
	07 fact sheet res 18-11,  committee appointments
	08 res 18-11, committee appoints
	09 Smith Resume
	10 Fact Sheet Res 18-12,  Appointment to OPWC
	11 res 18-12,  appoint to opwc district 17 committee
	12 FW_ Appoint OPWC
	13 fact sheet res 18-10,   ymca service agreement2
	14 res 18-10, ymca recreation service agree extension
	15 Memorandum- Recreation Program 2018 renewal 2.6.18
	16 YMCA MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 2018-2023 FINAL
	17 fact sheet ord 18-08, amend cpat 181 city income tax hb 49
	18 ord 18- 08, amend cpt 181 city income tax hb 49
	ABSTAIN ____

	19 fact sheet ord 18-11,  rezone 2017-3116 Delmor Dwelliing
	AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT TO ALLOW A PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ON APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED PO/I (PLANNE...

	20 ord 18-11, rezone 2017-3115 Del-Mor Dwelling
	AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT TO ALLOW A PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ON APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED PO/I (PLANNE...

	21 staff report-del mor
	22 fact sheet ord 18-12 ,  CUP 2017-3116 Delmor Dwelliing
	AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ON APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES ON PROPER...

	23 ord 18-12 , CUP 2017-3116 Del-Mor Dwelling
	AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ON APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRES ON PROPER...

	24 fact sheet ord 18-13, PDP 2017-3117 Delmor Dwelliing1
	AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR AN ACTIVELY OWNED AND MANAGED 40 DWELLING UNIT LOW AND MODERATE INCOME AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE ...

	25 ord 18-13 , PDP 2017-3117 Del-Mor Dwelling
	AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR AN ACTIVELY OWNED AND MANAGED 40 DWELLING UNIT LOW AND MODERATE INCOME AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE ...

	26 fact sheet ord 18-14 , CPA 2017-3118 Delmor Dwelliing
	AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT ON THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP FROM MEDIUM DENSITY SINGLE FAMILY TO MIXED USE AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ON APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRE...

	27 ord 18-14 , CPA 2017-3118 Del-Mor Dwelling
	AN ORDINANCE FOR DEL-MOR DWELLING CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT ON THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP FROM MEDIUM DENSITY SINGLE FAMILY TO MIXED USE AT 250 CURTIS STREET ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FIRESTONE DRIVE ON APPROXIMATELY 3.64 ACRE...

	28 fact sheet res 18-13, baumholder trip
	29 res 18-13, baumholder trip
	30 res 11-24 baumholder sister city
	31 fact sheet res 18-14, official intent Gazette Building
	32 res 18-14, official intent Gazette Building
	33 Dec of Official Intent Gazette Building
	34 fact sheet res 18-18, hvgc amend section 933.09 alcohol sales
	35 ord 18-18 , amend section 933.09 alcohol sales at hvgc
	36 HVGC Strategic Plan for Sustainability final
	37 2017 YE Finance Report
	38 city managers report 20180212
	39 Feb Calendar 2018
	40 March Calendar 2018
	41 20180226 Contract approval
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – FEBRUARY 26, 2018
	2018
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	CMO
	Negligible
	AFSME 
	AFSME Clerical Group Contract MOU

	Fire 
	$116.20/hr
	OWU
	Agreement for EMS Services during 2018 Graduation





